
Council Offices
Argyle Road
Sevenoaks
Kent
TN13 1HG

Despatched: 23.04.18

I hereby summon you to attend the meeting of the Sevenoaks District Council to be 
held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Argyle Road, Sevenoaks commencing 
at 7.00 pm on 01 May 2018 to transact the under-mentioned business.

Chief Executive

AGENDA
There are no fire drills planned. If the fire alarm is activated, which is a 
continuous siren with a flashing red light, please leave the building immediately, 
following the fire exit signs.

Apologies for absence

1.  To approve as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of 
the Council held on 20 February 2018. 

(Pages 1 - 10)

2.  To receive any declarations of interest not included in the 
register of interest from Members in respect of items of 
business included on the agenda for this meeting 

3.  Chairman's Announcements 

4.  To receive any questions from members of the public under 
paragraph 17 of Part 2 (The Council and District Council 
Members) of the Constitution. 

5.  To receive any petitions submitted by members of the public 
under paragraph 18 of Part 2 (The Council and District Council 
Members) of the Constitution. 

6.  To consider any questions by Members under paragraph 19.3 of 
Part 2 (The Council and District Council Members) of the 
Constitution, notice of which have been duly given. 

7.  To consider any motions by Members under paragraph 20 of 
Part 2 (The Council and District Council Members) of the 
Constitution, notice of which have been duly given. 

8.  To receive the report of the Leader of the Council on the work 
of the Cabinet since the last Council meeting. 

(Pages 11 - 12)



9.  To receive reports from the Chairmen of the Audit and 
Scrutiny Committees on the work of the Committees since the 
last Council meeting. 

a) Audit Committee Annual report 2017/18 (Pages 13 - 16)

b) Scrutiny Committee Annual Report to Council - 2017/18 (to follow)

EXEMPT INFORMATION 

Consideration of Exempt Information

Recommendation: That, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the public and press be excluded from the meeting when considering 
Agenda item 12 below, on the grounds that likely disclosure of exempt 
information is involved as defined by Schedule 12A, paragraph 3 (Information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including 
the authority holding that information).

10.  Matters considered by the Cabinet 

a) Income Strip Funding (Pages 17 - 42)

To assist in the speedy and efficient despatch of business, Members wishing to 
obtain factual information on items included on the Agenda are asked to enquire 
of the appropriate Contact Officer named on a report prior to the day of the 
meeting.

Should you require a copy of this agenda or any of the reports listed on it in 
another format please do not hesitate to contact the Democratic Services Team as 
set out below.

For any other queries concerning this agenda or the meeting please contact:

Democratic Services (01732 227000/ democratic.servces@sevenoaks.gov.uk)



17

DISTRICT COUNCIL OF SEVENOAKS

Minutes of the Meeting of the Sevenoaks District Council 
held on 20 February 2018 commencing at 7.00 pm

Present: Cllr. Abraham (Chairman) 

Cllrs. Ball, C. Barnes, Barnes, Mrs. Bayley, Brown, Dr. Canet, Clark, Coleman, 
Dickins, Dyball, Edwards-Winser, Esler, Eyre, Firth, Fleming, Gaywood, Grint, 
Hogarth, Horwood, Kelly, Kitchener, Krogdahl, Lake, Layland, London, Lowe, 
Maskell, McArthur, McGarvey, McGregor, Mrs. Morris, Parkin, Parson, Pearsall, 
Piper, Purves, Raikes, Scholey, Searles, Miss. Stack and Thornton

Apologies for absence were received from Cllrs. Bosley, Mrs. Bosley, Clack, 
Halford, Hogg, Mrs. Hunter, Pett, Reay, Scott, Ms. Tennessee and Williamson

31.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held 
on 21 November 2017 

The Chairman advised that further to the despatch of agenda papers the printed 
version of the minutes on the agenda did not have Councillors Ball, Barnes or 
Bayley listed in attendance.  This had since been corrected and a corrected version 
was before him.  

Resolved:  That the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 21 
November 2017 be approved and signed as a correct record.

32.   To receive any declarations of interest not included in the register of interest 
from Members in respect of items of business included on the agenda for this 
meeting 

No additional declarations of interest were received.
  
33.   Chairman's Announcements 

The Chairman reported the passing of former Councillor Richard Davison, who had 
represented Edenbridge South & West on the District Council from 2003. Stating 
that everyone’s thoughts were with his wife, former Councillor Jill Davison and his 
family, and he asked Members to join him in a moments silence in his memory.

He advised that Sajid Javid, the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and 
Local Government, had visited on Monday 5 February to find out about the 
Council’s recent successes, and to launch a #DigitalSunsetChallenge scheme the 
Council were backing to help young people learn good digital habits. He understood 
that he was spreading the word and advising people to come and see how it was 
done in Sevenoaks.

After the huge success of last year’s Run, Walk or Push against Dementia in Knole 
Park, the Chairman reported that the event was making its comeback on Sunday 13 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

18

May and would once again include timed 3, 5 and 10k courses suitable for everyone 
from parents with pushchairs to seasoned runners.

The Chairman also announced that he was hosting a Charity Indoor Bowls event 
which would take place at 7pm on Thursday 15 March at the Indoor Bowls Club in 
Sevenoaks at 7pm, and holding his end of term dinner on Friday 27 April at 7pm at 
Brands Hatchplace Hotel and Spa.  

34.   To receive any questions from members of the public under paragraph 17 of 
Part 2 (The Council and District Council Members) of the Constitution. 

No questions had been received.

35.   To receive any petitions submitted by members of the public under paragraph 
18 of Part 2 (The Council and District Council Members) of the Constitution. 

No petitions were received.

36.   Matters considered by the Cabinet 

(a) Calculation of Council Tax Base and other Tax Setting Issues

Councillor Fleming proposed and Councillor Scholey seconded, the recommendation 
from Cabinet.  The report set out details of the calculation of the District’s tax 
base for Council tax setting purposes.

Resolved:  That 

a) the report of the Chief Finance Officer for the calculation of the 
Council’s tax base for the year 2018/19 be approved;

b) pursuant to the report of the Chief Finance Officer and in accordance 
with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 
1992 (as amended) the amount calculated by the Sevenoaks District 
Council as its Council tax base for the whole area for the year 2018/19 
shall be 49,902.89;

c) pursuant to the report of the Chief Finance Officer and in accordance 
with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) Regulations 
1992 (as amended) the amount calculated by the Sevenoaks District 
Council as the Council tax base for 2018/19 for the calculation of local 
precepts shall be:

Parish Tax Base

Ash-cum-Ridley 2,431.82

Badgers Mount 329.31

Brasted 779.00

Page 2

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

19

Chevening 1,443.19

Chiddingstone 600.18

Cowden 402.07

Crockenhill 656.44

Dunton Green 1,180.38

Edenbridge 3,548.58

Eynsford 930.38

Farningham 657.83

Fawkham 280.51

Halstead 777.21

Hartley 2,538.28

Hever 598.98

Hextable 1,643.18

Horton Kirby & South Darenth 1,298.26

Kemsing 1,813.75

Knockholt 628.51

Leigh 877.50

Otford 1,687.32

Penshurst 831.38

Riverhead 1,242.10

Seal 1,223.02

Sevenoaks Town 9,470.04

Sevenoaks Weald 621.15

Shoreham 686.26

Sundridge 925.22

Swanley 5,485.19

Westerham 1,985.12

West Kingsdown 2,330.73

d) any expenses incurred by the Council in performing in part of its area a 
function performed elsewhere in its area by a parish or community 
Council or the chairman of a parish meeting shall not be treated as 
special expenses for the purposes of section 35 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

20

(b) Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 

Councillor Fleming proposed and Councillor Scholey seconded, the 
recommendations from Cabinet.  The report sought approval of the Treasury 
Management Strategy 2018/19.

Resolved:  That the Treasury Management Strategy for 2018/19 be approved.

(c) Budget and Council Tax Setting 2018/19

Councillor Fleming proposed and Councillor Scholey seconded, the 
recommendations within the report and from Cabinet.  

The Leader spoke to the motion stating that Members had before them another 
balanced 10 year budget, an achievement still unique within Local Government and 
an achievement recognised again this year by peers from across the sector.  The 
Council had followed last year's success with two awards from CiPFA, including 
their Grand Prix Prize and the highest accolade in local government the LGC 
Council of the Year, a win in which the Council’s financial self-sufficiency had 
played no small part.  He could guarantee with absolute certainty that the budget 
in front of Members would also be unique in the positivity of its message: 
investment in services, not cuts; increased investment in assets, not cuts; which 
demonstrated that the Council was a seriously different Council.

There was however no getting away from the fact these were incredibly difficult 
times for the local government sector.  In the last eight years Sevenoaks District 
Council's revenue support grant had fallen by over five million pounds.  In simple 
terms that meant the direct grant funding for every man, women and child within 
the District had reduced from £55.95 in 2010 to zero, absolutely nothing this year 
and risks remained. The spectre of the 'negative Revenue Support' was live and 
certain parts of the Council’s financial future was beyond its control. But the 
Council had put itself in absolutely the best possible position as the property 
portfolio had grown and was performing well.

He thanked all Members and officers who had helped to make it a reality. Last year 
he had spoken about plans being brought forward in Swanley, Edenbridge and 
Sevenoaks as the Council looked to build out the aspirations of those communities.  
Some of this work had taken longer than hoped for but he believed would now 
move at pace. Self-sufficiency and a property portfolio were never the end of the 
story, they were always to give the Council an opportunity to make decisions which 
would best serve the communities represented.

Members knew that he strongly believed that the Council should always balance 
the make-up of the money it had to spend.  The main three pillars that remained 
after the removal of government support were Council Tax, Savings and Investment 
income, and over reliance on any one of the three he believed destabilised the 
authority.

Page 4

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

21

The Secretary of State had been clear when he stood at the dispatch box to deliver 
the local government settlement.  He believed that Council tax increases should 
keep pace with inflation and he had made this possible by raising the referendum 
limit to 3%, which followed a theme over the last few years as Councils moved 
away from direct government support.  For Sevenoaks it would mean an increase of 
£6.03, as proposed, taking the total Sevenoaks District Council Tax figure to 
£208.80, or £4.00 a week.

The Leader stated that the work that Members and officers at Sevenoaks District 
Council had already done and the outcomes achieved had gained the Council 
national recognition.  Whilst awards weren't why anyone came into local 
government, they did act as a yard stick with which to measure against others and 
to coin a phrase they 'keep us honest' not allowing backsliding or any resting on our 
laurels.  Over the coming years the Council needed to go further, faster, and would 
need to both learn from others and lead.

He stated that there would undoubtedly be challenges ahead, and the Council’s 
future was not without risk, some of it falling outside of the Council’s control, so it 
would need to make sure it was fit for, ready for, and up for these challenges.

The work carried out and the work the Council continued to do, supported by the 
balanced ten year budget before Members was the solid foundation that makes him 
believe that Sevenoaks District would not just survive but would thrive in the 
future.  He commended the budget to Members.

In response to a question the Chief Finance Officer stated that Kent County Council 
had held their budget meeting that day and he could report that agreement had 
been reached as per report recommendations.

The vote was taken. 

For Against Abstention
Cllr. Abraham
Cllr. Ball
Cllr. C. Barnes
Cllr. J. Barnes
Cllr. Mrs Bayley
Cllr. Brown
Cllr. Dr. Canet
Cllr. Clark
Cllr. Coleman
Cllr. Dickins
Cllr. Dyball
Cllr. Edwards-Winser
Cllr. Esler
Cllr. Eyre
Cllr. Firth
Cllr. Fleming
Cllr. Gaywood

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

22

Cllr. Grint
Cllr. Hogarth
Cllr. Horwood
Cllr. Kelly
Cllr. Kitchener
Cllr. Krogdahl
Cllr. Lake
Cllr. Layland
Cllr. London
Cllr. Lowe
Cllr. Maskell
Cllr. McArthur
Cllr. McGarvey
Cllr. McGregor
Cllr. Mrs. Morris
Cllr. Parkin
Cllr. Parson
Cllr. Pearsall
Cllr. Piper
Cllr. Purves
Cllr. Raikes
Cllr. Scholey
Cllr. Searles
Cllr. Miss. Stack
Cllr. Thornton
42 0 0

It was therefore 

Resolved:  That the

a) Summary of Council Expenditure and Council Tax for 2018/19 set out in 
Appendix E to the report, be approved;

b) 10-year budget 2018/19 to 2027/28 which is the guiding framework for 
the detailed approval of future years’ budgets set out in Appendix B to 
the report be approved, including the growth and savings proposals set 
out in Appendix C-D to the report, and that where possible any 
variations during and between years be met from the Budget 
Stabilisation Reserve;

c) Capital Programme 2018/21 and funding method set out in Appendix H 
to the report be approved;

d) changes to reserves and provisions set out in Appendix I to the report, be 
approved;

e) Capital Programme 2018/21, and Asset Maintenance 2018/19 budget of 
£561,000  be approved (Cabinet 6 February 2018 – Capital Programme & 
Asset Maintenance 2018/21);

Page 6

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

23

f) it be noted that at the Cabinet meeting on 11 January 2018 the Council 
calculated as its Council tax base for the year 2018/19:

i) for the whole Council area as 49,902.89 being Item T in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, as 
amended, (the “Act”); and

ii) for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a parish precept 
relates as in the attached Appendix L;

g) Council tax requirement for the Council’s own purpose for 2018/19 
(excluding Town and Parish precepts) be calculated as £208.80;

h) following amounts be calculated for the year 2018/19 in accordance 
with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act:

(i) £56,248,220 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in 
Section 31A(2) of the Act taking into account 
all precepts issued to it by Town and Parish 
Councils.

(ii) £41,601,000 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 
Council estimates for the items set out in 
Section 31A(3) of the Act.

(iii) £14,647,220 being the amount by which the aggregate at 
(h)(i) above exceeds the aggregate at (h)(ii) 
above, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as 
its Council tax requirement for the year (Item 
R in the formula in Section 31B of the Act).

(iv) £293.51 being the amount at (h)(iii) above (Item R), 
all divided by (f)(i) above (Item T), calculated 
by the Council, in accordance with Section 
31B of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council tax for the year (including Town and 
Parish precepts).

(v) £4,227,497 being the aggregate amount of all special 
items (Town and Parish precepts) referred to 
in Section 34 (1) of the Act (as per Appendix K 
to the report).

(vi) £208.80 being the amount at (h)(iv) above, less the 
result given by dividing the amount at (h)(v) 
above by the amount at (f)(i) above (Item T), 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 34 (2) of the Act, as the basic amount 
of its Council tax for the year for dwellings in 
those parts of its area to which no Town or 
Parish precept relates.

i) it be noted that for the year 2018/19 the Kent County Council, the Kent 
Police & Crime Commissioner and the Kent & Medway Towns Fire 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

24

Authority had issued precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 
40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each category of 
dwellings in the Council’s area as indicated in the table below -

Valuation 
Bands

Precepting Authority

Sevenoaks 
District 
Council
£

Kent County 
Council
£

Kent Police & 
C.C.
£

Kent & 
Medway Towns 
Fire Authority
£

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

139.20
162.40
185.60
208.80
255.20
301.60
348.00
417.60

825.12
962.64

1,100.16
1,237.68
1,512.72
1,787.76
2,062.80
2,475.36

112.77
131.56
150.36
169.15
206.74
244.33
281.92
338.30

50.34
58.73
67.12
75.51
92.29

109.07
125.85
151.02

j) Council, in accordance with Sections 30 and 36 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts shown in Appendix 
N to the report as the amounts of Council tax for the year 2018/19 for 
each part of its area and for each of the categories of dwellings; and

k) Council’s basic amount of Council tax for 2018/19, shown in (h)(vi) 
above, is not excessive in accordance with principles approved under 
Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

37.   Matters considered by other standing committees 

(a) Gambling Act 2005: Licence Fees from April 2018

Councillor Fleming proposed and Councillor Mrs. Morris seconded the 
recommendations from the Licensing Committee.

Resolved:  That the appropriate fee levels be £3,670 for a new or renewal 
application, and £1,840 for the transfer of an application 
from 1 April 2018.

(b) Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 - Licence Fees from 
April 2018

Councillor Fleming proposed and Councillor Mrs. Morris seconded the 
recommendations from the Licensing Committee.

Resolved:  That the appropriate fee levels be £3,670 for a new or renewal 
application, and £1,840 for the transfer of an application from 1 April 2018. 

Page 8

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

25

(c) Monitoring Officer's Annual Report

Councillor Fleming proposed and Councillor Gaywood seconded the 
recommendations from the Standards Committee.

Resolved:  That the report be noted.

38.   To consider the following reports from the Chief Executive or other Chief 
Officers on matters requiring the attention of Council: 

(a) Pay Policy Statement

Councillor Fleming proposed and Councillor Lowe seconded the report which set 
out the elements of senior officer pay that enabled the Council to attract high 
quality officers whilst protecting value for money to the community. Approval by 
Council and publication on the Council website improved transparency and 
accountability whilst ensuring adherence to the Localism Act 2011.

Resolved: That the Pay Policy Statement be adopted and published on the 
Council’s website.

39.   To consider any questions by Members under paragraph 19.3 of Part 2 (The 
Council and District Council Members) of the Constitution, notice of which 
have been duly given. 

One question had been received from a Member in accordance with paragraph 19.3 
of Part 2 (The Council and District Council Members) of the Constitution.
 
Question 1:   Cllr. Dr. Canet

“Will Sevenoaks District Council consider the use of Compulsory Purchase Orders 
for building sites in the district which have been empty for some considerable 
time?

This waste of valuable uses for these sites is blighting Sevenoaks Town, for 
example the former Edwards Electrical site in the centre of the town, and not 
contributing to meeting our local housing needs.”

Response:  Leader of the Council

The Government outlined plans for the 2017 Housing White Paper to prepare new 
guidance encouraging the use of CPO powers to support the build out of stalled 
sites. That guidance has not yet been published.

The Council can make use of provisions in the 1990 Town & Country Planning Act to 
use compulsory powers to acquire sites in order to facilitate development or 
improvement. The use of such powers should only be made where there is a 
compelling case in the public interest and consideration given to a number of 
factors in deciding whether to exercise those powers. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 1



Council - Tuesday, 20 February 2018

26

Those factors include understanding why the owner isn’t bringing the site forward 
themselves, whether there is anything else the Council can do to enable 
development, short of making a Compulsory Purchase Order and is there both the 
ability for the Council to procure its development and do that in a timely manner. 
That latter point is important because there are costs involved in using those 
powers, particularly where the owner objects to the making of the Order and an 
Inquiry is held to determine whether the Order should be made, above and beyond 
the costs of purchasing the site and its subsequent development. It can typically 
take around 18 months to make and confirm a Compulsory Purchase Order. 

Where possible our approach is to seek to work with owners of such sites and their 
advisors to see if there are ways that the Council can enable development to take 
place.  If that doesn’t work then it would be necessary to carefully consider any 
use that could be made of CPO powers and the financial aspects of any potential 
acquisition.

Supplementary question: Cllr. Dr. Canet

When is Sevenoaks going to issue a Compulsory Purchase Order so we can get on 
with some of those matters and provide for our local housing needs.

Response: Leader of the Council

The Leader referred Councillor Dr. Canet to his initial response.

In accordance with the Constitution, there was no further discussion.

40.   To consider any motions by Members under paragraph 20 of Part 2 (The 
Council and District Council Members) of the Constitution, notice of which 
have been duly given. 

No motions had been received.

41.   To receive the report of the Leader of the Council on the work of the Cabinet 
since the last Council meeting. 

The Leader of the Council reported on the work that he and the Cabinet had 
undertaken in the period 4 November 2017 to 31 January 2018.

THE MEETING WAS CONCLUDED AT 7.30 PM

CHAIRMAN

Page 10

Agenda Item 1



Cllr Fleming - Leader’s report 

Date: 1 February – 13 April 2018

February
2018

Event Comments

2 February  Corporate Induction - SDC
5 February  Visit by Sajid Javid – SDC

 Meeting with Sir Michael Fallon – SDC
6 February  Growth/Infrastructure Meeting – Ashford

 Kent Council Leaders’ Meeting – Ashford
 Cabinet - SDC

8 February  DCN Conference – Warwick
9 February  DCN Conference – Warwick
14 February  Meeting with Swanley District Councillors – 

Swanley
 Corporate Plan Meeting - SDC

16-17 February  Notwestminster Conference - Huddersfield
20 February  DGS CCG re Swanley health facilities – SDC

 Presentation Skills Course – SDC
 Council - SDC

21 February  Kent & Medway Business Fund Investment 
Advisory Board – Maidstone

26 February  Meeting with Cllrs Hogarth & Maskell re working 
with universities - SDC

 LGA Commercial Services Meeting – London
27 February  Meeting with Graham Simmons of iESE - SDC

March
2018

1 March  Interview with Sevenoaks Chronicle – SDC
 Meeting re LEP Funding – SDC

5 March  Lunch with Grant Thornton – London
6 March  Policy & Performance Portfolio Holder Meeting – 

SDC
 Meeting with Swanley Town Councillors – Swanley

7 March  LGA Leadership Board – London
 Shadow Board of the New Local Government 

Association Company – London
8 March  Councillors’ Forum – London

 LGA Executive – London
 LGA Business Rates Task and Finish Group – 

London
 Quercas 7 Trading Board – SDC
 Cabinet - SDC

9 March  Meeting with Radio Kent journalist – SDC
 Meeting with Southern Water – SDC
 Strategic Programme Board - SDC

12 March  Speak at NWE Scrutiny Network meeting – 
Manchester

13 March  Meeting re Ashdown Forest – SDC
14 March  Sevenoaks Town Forum – Sevenoaks
15 March  Chair LGA Event – London

 Development Control Committee - SDC
Page 11

Agenda Item 8



16 March  Kent LEP Meeting – Essex
 SELEP Strategic Board meeting – Essex

19 March  Meet the Leader session – Candidate for Strategic 
Planning Manager post - SDC

 Visit Buckhurst 2 Site with Sir Michael Fallon – 
Sevenoaks

 Edenbridge Annual Town Council Meeting – 
Edenbridge

21 March  DCN Members’ Board Meeting - London
22 March  LGA Improvement & Innovation Board – London

 LGA IIB Working Group Meeting - London
 Policy & Performance Advisory Committee - SDC

23 March  Network Rail Event – Ashford
 Meeting with Sir Michael Fallon - SDC

26 March  Launch of Bat & Ball Station Project - Sevenoaks
 Kent & Medway Economic Partnership Meeting – 

Maidstone
 Kent Council Leaders’ Meeting - Maidstone

28 March  Speaker at Income Generation Conference - 
Manchester

April
2018

3 April  Policy & Performance Portfolio Holder Meeting - 
SDC

 Site visit to Premier Inn Hotel – Sevenoaks
 LGA Commercial Advisory Board - London

4 April  Mapping the Innovation Landscape Meeting – SDC
 Youth theatre play – Only Human – Stag Theatre, 

Sevenoaks
5 April  Affordable Housing Company meeting – SDC

 Growing the Tech Market Meeting – London
9 April  Interview with candidate for Strategic Planning 

Manager post - SDC
10 April  Telephone meeting with Duncan Leslie, Hever 

Castle
 Meeting re Income Strip Funding - SDC
 Meeting with Southeastern re Swanley Station – 

SDC
11 April  LGA Leadership Board - London

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

Council – 1 May 2018

Report of Cllr Grint, Chairman of the Audit Committee

Status: For Consideration

Introduction and Background

1 This is my report to the Council on the work of the Audit Committee during 
the year 2017/18.  

2 The Audit Committee is responsible for discharging the functions conferred 
by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The Committee met four times 
during the year.  The key responsibilities include approving the Council’s 
Annual Statement of Accounts, approving the Annual Governance Statement, 
approving the Annual Internal Audit Plan and monitoring and reviewing the 
work of Internal Audit, and reviewing the arrangements for the management 
of business risks.

3 In line with its Terms of Reference, the Audit Committee has met regularly 
during the course of the year. As Chair of the Committee, I have held regular 
briefings with Officers. Details of the range of issues considered by the 
Committee over the course of the year are set out below:

Internal Audit

June 2017  Internal Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit 
2016/17

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2016/17

 Internal Audit Strategy 2017/18

September 2017  Internal Audit 2017/18 – 1st Progress Report

 Internal Audit Recommendations Outstanding

January 2018  Internal Audit 2017/18 – 2nd Progress Report

 Internal Audit Recommendations Outstanding 

April 2018  Internal Audit 2017/18 – 3rd Progress Report

 Internal Audit Recommendations Outstanding 

 Internal Audit Plan 2018/19

Page 13

Agenda Item 9a



Governance, Risk & Anti-Fraud

June 2017  Counter Fraud and Compliance Report 2016/17

 Annual Governance Statement 2016/17

September 2017  Local Code of Corporate Governance

 Members’ Allowance Scheme – Monitoring

 Risk Management

 Draft Strategic Risk Register

April 2018  Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

Accounts and External Audit

June 2017  External Audit – Annual Audit Plan

 Statement of Accounts 2016/17 – Establishment of 
Member Working Group

September 2017  Statement of Accounts 2016/17

January 2018  External Audit – Housing Benefit Subsidy 2016/17

 External Audit – Annual Audit Letter 2016/17

April 2018  Statement of Accounts 2017/18 – Establishment of 
Member Working Group

 External Audit – Annual Audit Plan

4 In addition to the core work of the Committee, a Member Working Group was 
also set up in June 2017 to review the draft Statement of Accounts.  Its 
findings were reported back to the full Audit Committee at its meeting in 
September. The external auditors commented favourably on Members’ 
involvement in the Annual Accounts process.

5 The Audit Committee maintains a constructive dialogue and effective 
working relationship with the Council’s external auditors, Grant Thornton. 
The audit partner and audit manager from Grant Thornton have attended 3 
of the 4 Audit Committee meetings during the year.  Grant Thornton have 
been re-appointed as the Council’s external auditors for a further five years.

6 It is my opinion that the work of the Committee has had a positive impact on 
the overall control environment within the Council.  The Committee has 
developed good working relationships with Officers and External Audit, and 
has offered constructive comments on a range of issues. The Committee 
continues to develop and improve its understanding of the many technical 
issues presented to it.

Page 14

Agenda Item 9a



7 Training of Audit Committee Members is important so as to ensure that they 
can add value to the discussions at the Committee. Members were asked for 
their views on training requirements, and the following training took place:

 CIPFA provided Audit Committee training on 5 June 2017.  This was 
held jointly with Dartford Borough Council Audit Board Members.  Some 
non-Audit Committee Members also attended.

 Grant Thornton provided Statement of Accounts training on 13 June 
2017.

8 I should like to thank all members of the Audit Committee for their personal 
contribution to the work of the Committee over the past year. I should also 
like to thank Officers, in particular Adrian Rowbotham and Lisa Nyon, for the 
help and support they have given the Committee throughout the year. Lisa 
deserves a special mention, having been acting up as the Audit, Risk and 
Anti-Fraud Manager, the Internal Audit Plan is expected to be completed 
within the year which is a significant improvement compared to previous 
years.

Cllr John Grint
Chairman, Audit Committee

Page 15

Agenda Item 9a



This page is intentionally left blank



Item 10 (a) – Income Strip Funding

The attached report was considered by the Cabinet on 19 April 2018, and 
the relevant minute extract was therefore not available prior to printing of 
these papers and will follow when available.

Page 17

Agenda Item 10a



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 19

Agenda Item 10a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 10a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 10a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

Agenda Item 10a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 41

Agenda Item 10a
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 20 February 2018.
	8 To receive the report of the Leader of the Council on the work of the Cabinet since the last Council meeting.
	9a Audit Committee Annual report 2017/18
	10a Income Strip Funding
	10a CONFIDENTIAL APPENDIX to go before report but after minte reference  addtional info and amended reommndation
	10a CONFIDENTIAL Income Strip Funding
	10a CONFIDENTIAL Income Strip Funding - App A - FINAL Income Strip Structu.._
	10a CONFIDENTIAL Income Strip Funding - App B - FINAL Risk Analysis
	10a CONFIDENTIAL Income Strip Funding - App C - Financial example


